Minutes of a meeting of the Union/Employee Consultation Committee of the Bolsover District Council held in the Council Chamber, the Arc, Clowne, on Thursday 27th June 2019 at 1100 hours.

PRESENT:-

Council Representatives:-

Councillor Derek Adams, Mary Dooley, Tom Kirkham, Graham Parkin, Rita Turner and Ross Walker.

Union Representatives:-

Kevin Shillitto (Unison) and Chris McKinney (Unison).

Officers:-

Karen Hanson (Strategic Director – Place), Sara Gordon (Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager) and Alison Bluff (Governance Officer).

0097. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Dan Swaine (Joint Chief Executive Officer) and Lee Hickin (Joint Strategic Director – People).

0098. ELECTION OF CHAIR (UNION SIDE)

Moved by Kevin Shillitto (Unison) and seconded by Councillor Derek Adams **RESOLVED** that Chris McKinney be elected as Chair of the Union/Employee Consultation

Committee for the ensuing year.

Chris McKinney in the Chair

0099. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business to consider.

0100. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Graham Parkin declared that he was a retired member of both Usdaw and Unite and Councillor Tom Kirkham declared that he was a member of both Unite and Prospect.

0101. MINUTES – 21ST JUNE 2018

Moved by Kevin Shillitto (Unison) and seconded by Chris McKinney (Unison) **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of a Union/Employee Consultation Committee held on 21st

June 2019 be approved as a correct record.

0102. SPECIAL MINUTES – 25TH MARCH 2019

Moved by Councillor Mary Dooley and seconded by Kevin Shillitto (Unison) **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of a Special Union/Employee Consultation Committee held on 25th March 2019 be approved as a correct record.

0103. SICKNESS ABSENCE QUARTER 4 (JANUARY 2019 TO MARCH 2019)

Committee considered a report in relation to sickness absence figures for the Quarter 4 period (January 2019 to March 2019), with comparative data from previous years 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18.

Absence for Senior Managers was shown as 50% of the total absence for Senior Managers as this was split between Bolsover and North East Derbyshire District councils.

The average number of days lost per employee for Quarter 4 was 2.09 days but was lower than Quarter 4 in the previous year (2017/18) at 2.80 days. The annual outturn figure for the average number of days lost per employee for 2018/19 was 8.7 days against an annual target of 8.5 days.

A summary of key corporate trends in table formats were included in the report and covered:

- Organisational Outturn Average Number of Days Absence
- Organisational Long Term/Short Term Split Days Percentage
- Number of Long Term/Short Term Cases
- Top Three Services Proportionately Experiencing Highest Levels of Absence
- Top Three Services Proportionately Experiencing Lowest Level of Absence
- Top Three Reasons for Absence

Sickness levels had reduced for the second consecutive year. Long term sickness accounted for a high proportion of days lost (63.75%) over the year. Stress/Depression featured in the top three reasons in all four quarters and muscular skeletal was featured in 3 out of the 4 quarters.

Managers had support from dedicated service area HR Link officers and were issued monthly sickness absence information. Managers were also able to access sickness information for their teams' on a daily basis via the HR21 Self Service portal.

Operational concerns around management of sickness absence cases were raised with respective managers and dealt with as per standard practice and policy.

A Member queried how staff dealing with stress and depression were supported by the Council. The Human Resources and OD Manager advised the meeting that in a lot of cases, stress was related to incidents outside of work. With regard to work related stress, a manager would meet with the employee and carry out a questionnaire/analysis to enable tailored support to be put in place. Support for managers and employees was also provided by Occupational Health were appropriate and employees had access to a 24 hour, 7 days a week Employee Assistance Programme were confidential advice was provided on a range of issues. Further, the Council had a health and wellbeing programme for staff where healthy eating and exercise was encouraged and activities such as yoga and basic boxing sessions had been provided during lunch breaks or at the end of the working day, both of which had been well received and well attended.

In response to a Member's query, the Human Resources and OD Manager advised the meeting that sickness absence figures usually always rose during the winter months in comparison to the summer months.

Moved by Kevin Shillitto (Unison) and seconded by Councillor Mary Dooley **RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

0104. DRAFT ORGANISATIONAL POLICIES

Committee considered a report which provided information on five recently revised Council policies being:- Capability, Probation, Disclosure and Barring Service, Learning and Development and Smoke Free.

The five policies had been revised with a view to make their processes simpler and clearer for managers and employees and to fit the corporate context and supportive work environment both council's had in place and also to ensure adherence to legislation and best practice.

Human Resources had worked with managers from both councils and the unions to regularly review working practices to ensure the organisation's policies were fit for purpose and continued the ethos of being a supportive employer.

The policies had been previously considered and approved by Strategic Alliance Management Team (SAMT) in April 2019 and subject to informal consultation with the unions in May 2019.

Capability Policy

The Capability Policy was a new policy which had been previously linked into the Disciplinary Policy.

The Capability Policy had been designed to ensure employees were given the support, encouragement, development and guidance they needed to achieve the levels of performance required and expected in their job role. The policy provided a framework for

managing underperformance in a fair and consistent manner for all employees, when an employees' work performance fell below that expected for the role.

A Unison representative queried if the indicative timescales set out in the policy may be too short to be able to identify if they were working and the process itself seemed to appear to be fairly rigid in terms of how someone progressed before potentially facing dismissal. Also, the policy appeared unclear that if someone had mostly achieved the targets they had been set, there was no discretion built in for managers to extend periods and add in more time.

The Human Resources and OD Manager replied that she would not want to extend timescales because at the point where a manager felt they needed to put the formal process in place with an employee who was not achieving targets and underperforming, the manager would have had no option but to do so, as they would have already carried out a lot of previous support work and tried to resolve problems with the employee informally.

A Member queried who set work targets and if they were realistic for employees to achieve. The Human Resources and OD Manager replied that targets were set by the employee's manager following discussion with the employee in line with the job role and in consultation with Human Resources to ensure they were realistic.

The Strategic Director – Place suggested that under 4.2 Capability Process, the following sentence could be added;

Whilst it is recognised that each case must be considered on its own merits, the following table is indicative of the timeline.

The Unison representative felt that this sentence in the policy would alleviate Unison's concerns on this point.

In addition to the above amendment, the Chair requested that the effectiveness of the Capability Policy be monitored and a review carried out following a suitable period subsequent to implementation of the policy. Members supported this approach and the Human Resources and OD Manager agreed to this being carried out.

Probation Policy

The Probation Policy was designed to ensure that new employees were given the support, encouragement, development and guidance they needed to achieve the levels of performance and behaviour required in their job role. The policy ensured a fair and consistent process was followed for all employees.

The Probation Policy applied to new employees and apprentices joining Bolsover District Council and North East Derbyshire District Council and any employee who transferred employment between the two councils.

The duration of the probation period was 6 months with the possibility of an extension for a further 2 months but only in very exceptional circumstances.

The Human Resources and OD Manager requested that further wording be added under the heading 'Responsibilities', as per the bold text below;

<u>Manager</u> – responsible for implementing, managing, monitoring and assessing the new employee in accordance with this policy **and ensuring that inductions and probation meetings take place.**

<u>HR</u> – responsible for supporting the manager and employee *including monitoring that induction and probation meetings take place. P*roviding advice on the implementation of this policy in practice.

In addition to the above amendments, the Chair requested that the effectiveness of the Probation Policy be monitored and a review carried out following a suitable period subsequent to implementation of the policy. Members supported this approach and the Human Resources and OD Manager agreed to this being carried out.

Disclosure and Barring Service Policy

The Disclosure and Barring Service Policy applied to all employees in both paid and volunteer positions and as an organisation using the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS), the Council fully complied with the DBS Code of Practice.

The updates to the Disclosure and Barring Service Policy were based on the changes that the DBS had given in relation to what constituted regulated activities and the changes in DBS practices. Other changes were in relation to the list of job posts in the back of the document to ensure that these were up to date. The Authority was now part of the DBS Update Service which enabled the Council to check electronically on an employee's DBS status. Employees had to sign up to the Update Service and also inform the Authority if there were any changes to their DBS status.

An employees' DBS status needed to be up to date as it was transferable. For example, an employee in Leisure may have multiple jobs and work for other organisations.

The Human Resources and OD Manager noted that it had been raised by a Member in the UECC pre meeting whether or not Councillors should be subject to DBS checks. The Human Resources and OD Manager agreed to investigate to see if it was appropriate to Councillors' roles and also to explore if other authorities carried this out.

Learning and Development Policy

The Learning and Development Policy applied to all employees of the Council regardless of whether they were full time, part time, fixed term or casual employees. It also paid due regard to the principles of the Equality Act 2010, covering age, disability, gender, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The policy excluded agency workers, volunteers and Elected Members who were covered under separate policies.

The policy had been refreshed and updated to formalise the principles and practices already in place but changing the forms and templates and including the People Strategy

Framework, which had not previously been included, also clarifying learner agreement and repayment of fees scheme.

A Unison representative requested that reference be included in the policy with regard to specialised support being in place for individuals taking part in training that had dyslexia or similar learning needs. The Human Resources and OD Manager replied that for external training, an external training provider would be responsible for ensuring that relevant support was in place. However, for internal training, a sentence could be included in the policy that subject to assessment, reasonable adjustments could be put in place for any individual with those types of conditions.

Smoke Free Policy

Issues had arisen at both councils in relation to existing smoking arrangements, including suitability of existing smoking areas, increase in litter (largely cigarette butts) and lack of clear signage and communication.

Discussions had taken place with relevant officers and recommendations had been drawn up for a proposed approach moving forward. These recommendation were included in appendix 1, attached to the report.

The policy had also been refreshed and terminology added, for example, 'vaping', as this had not previously been included and also clarification of the smoking areas.

It was noted that a new area had been designated in the grounds at the Arc for smokers and vapers, which was far away from all the Council buildings, tenants in the Arc grounds and residential houses on High Street.

Committee welcomed the new designated smoking area.

It was suggested that the title of the Smoke Free Policy be amended to 'Smoke and Vape Free Policy'.

Moved by Kevin Shillitto and seconded by Councillor Mary Dooley **RESOLVED** that the Union/Employee Consultation Committee support the five policies as presented, subject to the inclusion of the following amendments;

1. Capability Policy

at paragraph 4.2 under Capability Process, the following sentence be added;

Whilst it is recognised that each case must be considered on its own merits, the following table is indicative of the timeline.

In addition to the above amendment, support for the Capability Policy be subject to a review of its effectiveness following a suitable period subsequent to implementation of the policy.

2. Probation Policy

under the heading 'Responsibilities', the following wording be added (bold text);

<u>Manager</u> – responsible for implementing, managing, monitoring and assessing the new employee in accordance with this policy **and ensuring that inductions and probation meetings take place.**

<u>HR</u> – responsible for supporting the manager and employee *including monitoring that induction and probation meetings take place. P*roviding advice on the implementation of this policy in practice.

In addition to the above amendments, support for the Probation Policy be subject to a review of its effectiveness following a suitable period subsequent to implementation.

3. <u>Disclosure and Barring Policy</u>

the Human Resources and OD Manager to investigate whether or not it was appropriate to Councillors' roles to be subject to DBS checks and also to investigate if other authorities carried this out,

4. Learning and Development Policy

In relation to internal training, the policy to include a reference that subject to assessment, reasonable adjustments could be put in place for any person with dyslexia or similar conditions,

5. Smoke Free Policy

The Smoke Free Policy title be amended to 'Smoke and Vape Free Policy'.

(Human Resources and OD Manager)

The meeting concluded at 1145 hours.